
 
 
 

 
  7 October 2020 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
will meet on 

Thursday, 15 October 2020 

beginning at 
6:45 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed 

here: https://bit.ly/33yDM08 

 
TO: Councillor Richard Gomer (Chair) 
 Councillor Malcolm Cross (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor Janice Asman 

Councillor Alan Broadhurst 
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey 
Councillor Jephthe Doguie 
Councillor James Duguid 
Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Tim Groves 
Councillor Lucy Jurd 
Councillor David Pragnell 
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 
Councillor Gin Tidridge 

 
CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader 
  
Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer; Tel: 023 8068 

8298; Email: nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 
Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director Tel: 023 8068 8405 
Email: natalie.wigman@eastleigh.gov.uk 

  

NATALIE WIGMAN 
Corporate Director – Strategy 

____________________________________________________________________ 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in other formats, including 

Braille, audio, large print and other languages, upon request. 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to 
proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It is important, however, that 

Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the only 
participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers 
advising the Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting may be recorded. 

 

Eastleigh House  
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

https://bit.ly/33yDM08
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation      
  
 Councillors not on Policy and Performance Committee and members of the public 

can participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways: 
 

 If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to 

be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working 

days (Midday Friday 9 October 2020) before the meeting. Technical and 

etiquette guides will be provided. 

 Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the 

spokesperson’.  Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days 

(Midday Tuesday 13 October 2020) before the date of the meeting. 

Democratic Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read 

out. 

 The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum 

of three minutes if read out.  Please therefore restrict your statement to one 

side of A4 (12 font).  This applies audio/ video recordings also. 

 Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days 

(Midday Friday 9 October 2020) before the meeting.  This must be 

accompanied by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not 

meet technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson 

and shown on the screen.  

 Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk 
  
2. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 8)  
  
 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2020. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      
  
 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 

agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
  
5. Chair's Report     
 
6. Update from Task and Finish Groups     
 
7. COVID 19 Recovery     
 
8. Pollution Strategy Development    (Pages 9 - 10) 
 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


9. Equality Strategy Renewal    (Pages 11 - 26) 
 
10. Cabinet Forward Plan    (Pages 27 - 32) 
 
11. Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme    (Pages 33 - 36) 

 
 
 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 23 November 2020 at 6:45 pm 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Thursday, 10 September 2020  (6:45 pm – 8:34 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Gomer (Chair); Councillors Asman, Broadhurst, Couldrey, 
Duguid, Grajewski, Groves, Jurd, Tyson-Payne and Tidridge 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Atkinson 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Cross 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

106. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion.  
 

107. MINUTES 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 20 July 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

108. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

109. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair reported that an invite to attend a Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Panel Meeting had been extended to Highways England with 
regards to the Smart Motorway on the M27. There had been no response 
from them to date. 
 
The Strategic Planning Manager had compiled a list of policies that were 
due for renewal along with a timetable. The Chair would arrange a meeting 
with the Strategic Planning Manager to organise the work plan. 
 

110. UPDATES FROM TASK AND FINISH GROUPS 
 

(a) Housing Task and Finish Group 
 

Councillor Couldrey reported that the Housing Task and Finish 
Group had met in early July and discussed the Planning Policy with 

5

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

the Head of Finance. No decisions had been made to date. A 
further meeting had been scheduled for later in September.  

 
 

(b) COVID-19 Recovery Task and Finish Group 
 
Councillor Tyson-Payne reported that the Group had met, and 
Officers had a very structured way of working. A recommendation 
had been made to explore a work stream for digital inclusion to 
enable residents who were not connected digitally to be connected. 
Councillor Tyson-Payne invited suggestions from Members to take 
back to the Task and Finish Group.  
 

 
(c) Social Portfolio Policy Task and Finish Group 

 
Councillor Jurd reported that the Group met on the 17 August 2020 
and discussed how the priorities fitted in with the Corporate Action 
Plan. The objectives of the Group were discussed and how to 
shape the policy moving forward. Attendance was low; however, it 
was agreed that the slides would be circulated, and another 
meeting would be arranged at a later date. 
 

It was requested that Democratic Services be present to minute the 
meetings.  
 

111. CONSTITUTION REVIEW 
 
The Chief Executive introduced the report and highlighted how important 
the Constitution was to the Council. Contract Standing Orders were under 
review and would be scrutinised by the Procurement Executive Group 
(PEG). Financial Regulations were fit for purpose and the Chief Financial 
Officer had confirmed that major alterations were not required. The aim 
was to take the Constitution to full Council in November for consideration 
and approval.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel noted the contents 
of the report and made the following recommendations for 
consideration: 
 

1. Strengthen the benefits statement in the PID so that the 
Council are clear in the value of the exercise; 

2. Ensure that the exercise is properly resourced; 
3. Have regard to how any changes that ways of working 

embodied in the Constitution can support the aspirations of 
the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel as described in the 
20/21 Action Plan; 

6



3 
 

4. Give regard to how the nature of work and meetings have 
changed whilst recognising the limits and opportunities of 
online meetings; 

5. With any changes to the ‘way we work’, there must be 
consideration given to the implications on the Climate Change 
Emergency; and 

6. Consider how to make the Constitution more accessible to 
residents of various backgrounds. 

 
112. TREE STRATEGY AND SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 

 
Councillor Kyrle, Cabinet Member for the Environment and the Strategic 
Planning Lead for the Environment introduced the report and explained 
that the Supplementary Planning Document would sit in the Local Plan 
when adopted and will set out what the Council expects developers to do 
regarding trees. A Task and Finish Group was suggested to look at 
elements in key pieces of work. The draft strategy and Supplementary 
Planning Document would come back to the Committee in December for 
review. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel noted the contents 
of the report and made the following recommendations for 
consideration: 
 

1. Establish a Task and Finish Group to be Chaired by Councillor 
Tim Groves to do the following: 

 Assist with the development of the Tree Strategy and 
Tree Supplementary Planning Document (SPD); 

 Consider congruence of the SPD Strategy, the overall 
Climate Action Plan and strategies such as enforcement; 

 Consider Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the 
strategy to feed into performance management; 

 Engage stakeholders and take evidence from external 
bodies such as The Woodlands Trust; and 

 To report to the Committee alongside the pre-decision 
scrutiny on the SPD and include their deliberations and 
input.  

 
113. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
The Panel considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 
 

114. POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL'S WORK 
PROGRAMME 
 
Panel members considered their Work Programme to March 2021. 

7



4 
 

 
It was AGREED that the Work Programme be noted. 
 

8



 

 
Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel Briefing Note 

15 October 2020 

Pollution Strategy Development  

This briefing note sets out the scope for the development of a pollution policy in 
order to begin early engagement with the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel. 
The Climate and Environmental Emergency Action plan as agreed in November 
2019 included a commitment for the Council to produce a Pollution Strategy, setting 
out its approach to wider environmental pollution issues beyond the Air Quality Plan 
adopted in January 2020.  

The current plan is that over the coming months detailed proposals will be produced 
and brought back to the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel in February 2021 for 
consideration. 

The proposed Pollution Policy is intended to set out the Council’s approach to the 
main Environmental Protection areas, these include: 

 Noise 

 Dust 

 Light 

 Vibration 

 Smoke 

 Impacts to Land (including Soil), Water and Air  

 Impact on Human and Ecological receptors 

The policy will be developed by: 

 Taking into account what level of issue there are on each of the above 

 Considering the interdependency with wider strategies, specifically: 
o Climate and Environmental Emergency Strategy 
o Air Quality Strategy (Borough Wide) 
o Tree Policy (under development) 
o Biodiversity Action Plan 
o Waste Policy 

 Ensuring effective delivery of Council Services for Environmental Protection 
and work to mitigate any Environmental Decline. 

 Setting SMART targets for improvement in levels of pollutants, reduction in 
pollutant impacts. 

Timescales 

o P&P for scoping on 15 October 2020 
o P&P Environment Sub Working Group engagement November to February 
o P&P for policy consideration 11 February 2021 

9

Agenda Item 8



o Cabinet for final consideration 22 February 2021 

Considerations for Members of the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel 

- Does the scope as set out in this document cover all of the Councils activities 
regarding Pollution? 

- Are there particular areas which at this time appear to be priorities for the 
Council around pollution management? 

- What information would useful in understanding pollution matters in the 
Borough? 

- Are there particular groups who we should consider engaging with during the 
development of this policy? 

- Which members of the panel would wish to be on the working group? 

10



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL  

Thursday, 15 October 2020  

EQUALITY STRATEGY RENEWAL 

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Panel 
 
(1) comment on the report; and  

(2) contribute to the development of a new Strategy and Action Plan. 

 

Summary 
 
The Council has general and specific public sector duties under the Equality Act 2010.  
The previous Equality Action Plan expires this year and needs to be renewed and 
updated. 

Focus for Scrutiny 

Policy development at an early stage. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Equality Act 2010 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The Equality agenda relates closely to the Council’s objectives to Enable 
Health and Wellbeing and Tackle Deprivation, but also forms a key component 
of the way that the Council addresses all of its corporate objectives and 
delivers many of its services and projects. 

Introduction 

2. The current Equality Action Plan (2016-2020) is attached at Appendix A. 
Information and a demographic profile of Eastleigh Borough and the different 
protected characteristics as at 2016 is available on the Council’s website: 
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/2348/equality-action-plan-2016-2020-
data.pdf. 

11

Agenda Item 9

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/2348/equality-action-plan-2016-2020-data.pdf
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/2348/equality-action-plan-2016-2020-data.pdf


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

3. The Council will be renewing its approach to Equalities and setting new 
objectives in an updated Action Plan.  

4. The current health and public policy context includes: 

(a) The possible inequalities in risks and outcomes from Covid-19 

(b) Black Lives Matter demonstrations 

(c) Increased use of digital technologies 

(d) An ageing population 

(e) Economic recession and disruption to young people’s education. 

Protected Characteristics 

5. The following characteristics are protected in the Equality Act 2010 

(a) age 

(b) disability 

(c) gender reassignment 

(d) pregnancy and maternity 

(e) race – this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality 

(f) religion or belief – this includes lack of belief 

(g) sex 

(h) sexual orientation 

(i) marriage and civil partnership (in respect to the need to eliminate 
discrimination). 

6. The Council also considers socio-economic deprivation as part of its current 
approach to assessing Equalities Impacts. 

The Equality Act – the general duty 

7. The Equality Duty has three aims. It requires public bodies to have due regard 
to the need to: 

(a) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 
other conduct prohibited by the Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and people who do not share it; and 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

(c) foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and people who do not share it. 

8. Having due regard means consciously thinking about the three aims of the 
Equality Duty as part of the process of decision-making. This means that 
consideration of equality issues must influence the decisions reached by 
public bodies – such as in how they act as employers; how they develop, 
evaluate and review policy; how they design, deliver and evaluate services, 
and how they commission and procure from others. 

9. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves 
considering the need to: 

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristics; 

(b) meet the needs of people with protected characteristics; and 

(c) encourage people with protected characteristics to participate in public 
life or in other activities where their participation is low. 

10. Fostering good relations involves tackling prejudice and promoting 
understanding between people who share a protected characteristic and 
others. 

11. Complying with the Equality Duty may involve treating some people better 
than others, as far as this is allowed by discrimination law. For example, it 
may involve making use of an exception or the positive action provisions in 
order to provide a service in a way which is appropriate for people who share 
a protected characteristic – such as providing computer training to older 
people to help them access information and services. 

The Equality Act – the specific duty 

12. Public sector bodies are required to: 

(a) Publish information to demonstrate its compliance with the general 
equality duty annually. This information must include, in particular, 
information relating to people who share a protected characteristic who 
are:  

(i) its employees, and 

(ii) people affected by its policies and practices. 

(b) Prepare and publish, at least every four years, one or more objectives 
that it thinks it needs to achieve to further any of the aims of the 
general equality duty. The objectives must be specific and measurable.  

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

New Strategy and Action Plan 

13. The Council will review its performance as a first stage of renewing its 
objectives and action plan.  The Council has already identified that, while 
some significant progress has been made, it needs to improve performance 
further in relation to the quality and quantity of Equality Impact Assessments 
and reporting on these. The Council also plans to improve its engagement 
with different communities and people with protected characteristics. 

14. A cross-service officer working group, including a Corporate Management 
Team champion, is being formed to steer and carry out the work to develop a 
new Strategy and Action Plan and then support and monitor its 
implementation. 

15. Groups representing people with protected characteristics will be consulted on 
areas of Council activity where improvements could be made, and how they 
would like to be involved in informing service and project design in future. 

16. The Strategy and Action Plan will relate to Council staff as well as Borough 
residents, in line with the general and specific duties.  

17. Some progress has been made in recent years in relation to both Councillor  
and staff training, and this is likely to be continued and included in the next 
Action Plan. 

18. An initial draft timeline indicated that work to develop a new Strategy and 
Action Plan might conclude by December 2020; this is subject to review due 
to staffing resource currently available for this work and a new timeline will be 
established following recruitment to a key vacant post.   

19. The format of the new Strategy may include: 

(a) Demographic and inequalities data for the borough 

(b) Links to our strategic objectives and other EBC strategies 

(c) The aim of the approach e.g. “To make Eastleigh an inclusive borough 
where people’s hopes and aspirations can be realised and that 
everyone has a voice and all communities are considered to ensure a 
good quality of life can be achieved by all.” 

(d) Objectives such as 

(i) Meet the Public Sector Equality Duty – general and specific 

(ii) Embed equalities into all areas of our work 

(iii) Ensure our staff and Councillors are able to address equality 
issues  

(iv) Collaborate with protected characteristics groups to make our 
services more accessible to everyone. 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

(e) Action Plan including performance indicators and measures 

20. A Task and Finish Group was held with some members of this Panel on 17 
August 2020, at which an initial discussion about Equalities issues took place. 
The Panel as a whole is invited to contribute to policy development in this 
area at an early stage. Issues to consider include: 

(a) The diversity and size of different groups with protected characteristics 
in Eastleigh Borough. 

(b) The usefulness of obtaining detailed customer profile data for different 
services. 

(c) Service areas where Equalities issues are particularly relevant 

(d) Unconscious bias and systemic or structural forms of discrimination. 

(e) The extent to which services should be the same for everyone or 
different for different groups.  

(f) Access to services as the Council seeks to encourage greater use of 
digital technology in order to provide good customer service for 
everyone. 

Financial Implications 

21. Work to develop a new Strategy and Action Plan can be carried out within 
existing resources. Any costs of implementing the Action Plan will be included 
within planned future budgets. 

Risk Assessment 

22. The Council risks only partially fulfilling its mission of ‘Supporting Communities 
and Improving Lives’ if it does not take an inclusive approach to all of the 
communities it serves. 

23. The Council is at risk of enforcement by the Equalities and Human Rights 
Commission if it does not fulfil its general and specific equalities duties. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

24. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as it relates entirely to 
the way the Council meets its duties under the Act and carries out other 
activity to address inequality and have a positive impact on all communities.  

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

25. There are no climate or environmental implications of this report.  It is not 
envisaged that the future Strategy and Action Plan would have any negative 
climate or environmental implications. Improved engagement with all the 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Council’s residents will assist in promoting behaviour change and action to 
reduce climate change. 

 

Conclusion 

26. The Panel is invited to comment on the report and contribute to the 
development of the Strategy and Action Plan. 

DICCON BRIGHT 
STRATEGIC PLANNING MANAGER 

 
Date: 1/10/2020 
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright  
Tel No: 07788 790729 
e-mail: diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Appendix A – EBC Equality Action Plan 2016-2020 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 
 

16



1

Eastleigh Borough 
Council

Equality Action Plan 
2016 - 2020

17



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

2

Introduction
The Council’s vision is to support Eastleigh Borough and its communities 
developing a strong and sustainable economy that supports improved 
standards of living for residents; promoting thriving and healthy communities; 
and maintaining an attractive and sustainable environment that resident’s value 
(EBC Corporate Plan Vision, November 2015). The Council is keen to celebrate 
the diversity of our Borough and ensure that all groups can play a full and equal 
role in our community. Unfortunately some groups of people face a number 
of barriers which prevent them from fully participating in the community and 
achieving this aim. This action plan sets out how the Council will try to help 
these people and remove some of the barriers they face. 

Executive Summary
This action plan is concerned with how the Council can help groups of people 
who often face disadvantage and aims to improve the quality of life for all 
residents as well as meeting its legal responsibilities. The plan reflects the 
needs of the local community and its changing demographics. The Council is 
keen to make sure that everyone is able to access services and be part of our 
community, that our services are responsive and that our staff are aware and 
understand equality issues. We have developed an action plan which is aimed at 
being responsive and pro-active in meeting these needs of residents.

Context
This action plan is aimed at achieving real outcomes for our communities. 
It is the second action plan for the Council. In the first strategy we focussed 
on getting our processes right, in this strategy we want clear outcomes for 
residents. 

The action plan has been developed in the context of the Equality Act 2010 
which replaced previous anti-discrimination laws with a single Act. Under the 
Equality Act the Council has a duty to: 

 § Eliminate unlawful discrimination. 

 § Advance equality of opportunity and 

 § Foster good relations.

1.

2.

3.

18



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

3

In addition the Council has specific responsibilities to publish information to 
show compliance with the duty at least annually (as well as to set and publish 
equality at least every four years).

The action plan has also been developed in response to changing demographics 
within the Borough. We are aware that a significant proportion of the 
population of the Borough will be older people who may have specific needs. 
We are also aware of the need to respond to new communities moving into the 
Borough such as the Ghurkha/Nepalese community. Information about the 
demographics of the Borough is contained within Appendix 1 of this strategy. 

Why does equality matter?
For the Council, equality matters because it means treating people fairly 
and promoting equality of opportunity. Unfortunately some people in our 
communities can face discrimination, harassment and worse outcomes in 
important areas such as health and education; the new legislation seeks to 
re-address the balance for those groups. The Act sets out what is covered by 
the legislation and these are termed protected characteristics. The protected 
characteristics are: 

Age - where this is referred to, it refers to a person belonging to a particular 
age (e.g. 32 year olds) or range of ages (e.g. 18 - 30 year olds).

Disability - a person has a disability if s/he has a physical or mental impairment 
which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on that person’s ability to 
carry out normal day-to-day activities.

Gender reassignment - the process of transitioning from one gender to another.

Marriage and civil partnership - a person is legally married if the union is 
recognised as a marriage under UK law. Same-sex couples can have their 
relationships legally recognised as ‘civil partnerships’. Civil partners must be 
treated the same as married couples on a wide range of legal matters.

Pregnancy and maternity - pregnancy is the condition of being pregnant or 
expecting a baby. Maternity refers to the period after the birth, and is linked 
to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, 
protection against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, 
and this includes treating a woman unfavourably because she is breastfeeding.

4.

19



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

4

Race - refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality 
(including citizenship) ethnic or national origins.

Religion and belief - religion has the meaning usually given to it, but belief 
encompasses religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g. 
Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or the way you live 
for it to be included in the definition.

Sex - a man or a woman.

Sexual orientation - whether a person’s sexual attraction is towards their own 
sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes

A person is also protected if they are discriminated against because s/he 
is perceived to have, or is associated with someone who has, a protected 
characteristic

The EBC Corporate Plan includes an objective to improve the health of older 
people due to changes in demographics, and targeting some approaches to get 
people more physically active on older people and other groups with protected 
characteristics.

The EBC Corporate Plan also includes an objective to tackle deprivation and 
reduce health inequalities; this includes taking reasonable action where 
groups with protected characteristics are found to experience worse outcomes 
than other groups. (It also includes addressing issues of deprivation in 
neighbourhoods although this is not a protected characteristic.)

Our aims
One of the main features of this action plan is the focus on the needs of our 
community and ensuring we are in touch with the difficulties people can 
experience. Our main priorities will be:

 § Ensuring our services are accessible. 

 § Ensuring everyone is able to be part of our community and that different 
groups of people are recognised as having a contribution to make and are 
respected. 

 § Ensuring our staff are aware and understand equality issues.

5.

20



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

5

 § Ensuring our services are responsive and that we communicate and listen 
effectively by using a range of communications channels suited to a diverse 
audience.

 § Ensuring we have recruitment and employment practices and policies 
which do not discriminate against people with protected characteristics and 
promote equality of opportunity. 

Our Approach
 § Effective use of Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) to improve outcomes for 

all the community.

 § Compulsory online training course for staff.

 § Ensuring that all communications strategies and campaigns developed for 
Council services recognise the needs of the borough’s diverse communities.

 § Ensuring that an accessible information statement is included in all 
communications material (printed or electronic).

 § Ensuring that consultation takes place with people who have protected 
characteristics about any new or significantly changed policies and services 
affecting them.

Progress on actions from the 
previous action plan
The previous action plans ran from 2012 to 2016 and below are some of the key 
achievements:

 § Compulsory online equality and diversity training for staff introduced in 2014. 

 § Set up Nepalese elders group with partner organisations in 2015 with 10-20 
elders attending.

 § Part funded a Community Advocates course in Eastleigh for people from 
BME communities in a joint project with SOS Polonia. The course was 
attended by 22 people speaking 9 different languages from 10 countries. 
The course supported participants to develop their understanding of 
public services including Council services and health services. The project 
has resulted in improved communication between service providers and 
community members.

6.

7.

21



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

6

 § Provided ongoing support to the Asian Welfare and Cultural Association 
elders group of between 35-50 people to support them in accessing services. 

 § Developing a “health card” to alert health services of the need for and 
statutory duty to provide an interpreter with West Hampshire CCG and 
voluntary organisations. 

 § Regularly attended ESOL (English as Second or Other Language) courses 
at Eastleigh College to provide information and respond to queries about 
access to services.

 § Continued to support the Racial Equality Forum to meet quarterly and 
provision of regular updates about Council activities and services. The Racial 
Equality Forum has established an annual meeting at Eastleigh College 
which has been successful in engaging young people. The Forum has also 
been a key stakeholder in the Eastleigh Hate Crime project resulting in a 
Hate Crime reporting centre being established in Eastleigh Museum

 § Continued support financially and with the organisation of the annual 
Eastleigh Mela including the delivery of free mini health checks. The Mela 
was attended by around 10,000 people in 2015 and 40 mini health checks 
were carried out.

 § Become a member of the Hampshire Dementia Action Alliance and 
developing Local Dementia Action Groups and provided Dementia Friends 
training for staff. 25 staff in EBC have attended a dementia friends session.

 § Carried out Equality Impact Assessments for key decisions and policies. This 
has included consulting specific groups about the Customer Service Centre, 
the introduction of the “My Eastleigh” system online and the Local Taxation 
Scheme.

 § Supported One Community to host Older People’s network events across 
the Borough in Velmore, Chandlers Ford, Underhill, Hedge End, Fair Oak and 
Netley Grange. Approximately 208 people attended. 

 § Consulted groups including older people, young people and ethnic 
minorities about the Customer Service Centre. 

Action Plan
The plan below sets out the main actions the Council will undertake in the 
next few years. Not all Council services are mentioned in the plan, however 
all services will contribute towards achieving equality of opportunity and 
celebrating diversity. 

8.

22



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

7

Consultation Process
There will be a consultation process to ensure we have identified the right 
priorities and actions. This will include asking for comments on the strategy and 
visiting key interest groups to discuss our plans and obtain feedback. 

Financial Implications
It is anticipated that implementing the priorities in this strategy will not be 
costly. It is expected that a lot of the outcomes can be achieved by asking 
people what they want and being responsive. Where there are initiatives which 
will have a financial implication this has been included in the action plan.

Conclusion
The Council hopes that this strategy will contribute towards improving the 
quality of life for residents. 

For more information contact:

Healthy Communities Team
Eastleigh Borough Council,  
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street,
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

helen.coleman@eastleigh.gov.uk
tel: 023 8068 8000

9.

10.

11.

23



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

8

Action Plan
Priority What we will do Milestones

1. Effective use of 
Equality Impact 
Assessments 
(EIAs) to improve 
outcomes for the 
community.

a) Completion of EIAs for new or 
significantly changed services and 
policies where relevant. 

b) Publication of EIAs on Council website 
within month of approval.

c) Record of key EIA findings to be 
included in Council Committee 
reports.

d) A summary of EIAs conducted and 
findings to be reported to the Cabinet 
Portfolio holder quarterly.

Review quarterly

2. Ensuring staff 
and councillors 
are appropriately 
trained.

a) Online training course compulsory for 
staff as part of induction

b) Provide briefings for Councillors as 
part of Member Development.

100% of staff to 
have undertaken 
the training.

Sessions for 
Members to be 
arranged as part 
of the revised 
Members training 
programme.

3. Ensuring our 
communication is 
accessible.

c) Ensure that all communication 
strategies and campaigns developed 
for Council services recognise the 
needs of the borough’s diverse 
communities.

d) Ensure that an accessible information 
statement is included in all 
communications material (printed or 
electronic).

e) Respond to requests for information 
in alternative formats or for 
translation or interpretation services 
promptly. Record requests for 
monitoring.

f) Ensure all literature and information 
provided is easy to understand and 
accessible.

Annual report to 
Scrutiny Panel

24



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

9

Priority What we will do Milestones
4. Monitor Access to 

Services.
a) Ensure monitoring information about 

services is kept and if it seems some 
groups are not using services take 
action to identify and remove barriers.

Immediate

5. Ensure new 
and existing 
ethnic minority 
communities are 
supported to 
access services and 
integrate in the 
borough.

a) Work with the Health and Wellbeing 
partnership to improve access to 
health services.

b) Support the Eastleigh Mela as a focal 
point for celebrating diversity.  

Pilot the NHS 
Health Alert card 
about access to 
interpreters.

Support initiatives 
and funding 
bids to develop 
community 
advocates.

Provide free mini 
health checks at 
the Eastleigh Mela.

Provide rant 
funding of £9,000 
for the Mela in 2016 

6. Ensuring we 
respond to the 
needs of older 
people.

a) Provide funding for One Community 
to run Older Peoples Network 
meetings across the Borough.

b) Lead the development of Dementia 
Action Groups across the Borough 
Friends and Trigger Tool training for 
staff.

c) Provide a subsidised handy person 
scheme offering discounted home 
repairs for older and disabled people.

Funding in place 
for 2016/2017.

Dementia Local 
action groups 
established in  
5 local areas

Number of people 
using the service 
is 250 plus.

25



Eastleigh Borough Council Equality Action Plan 2016-2020

10

Priority What we will do Milestones Outcome

7. Ensuring we 
respond to 
the needs of 
disabled people 
and vulnerable 
people.

a)  Review and re-launch the 
Safe Places initiative in the 
borough in partnership 
with One Community.

b)  Develop second 3rd party 
hate crime reporting centre 
in the borough

c)  Develop further links with 
the Eastleigh Disability 
Forum.

Relaunch by end 
of 2016 at Annual 
Community Safety 
Forum.

By Spring 2017.

Develop a link 
with the Eastleigh 
Disability Forum 
and the Eastleigh 
Health and 
Wellbeing Board.

Vulnerable 
groups more 
confident 
in visiting 
the town 
and village 
centres.

8. Promote 
equalities as an 
employer

a) Continue equalities 
monitoring of the 
recruitment process.

b) Offer interviews to all 
disabled applicants that 
meet the job description 
requirements.

c) Sign up to the employers 
mental health pledge 
‘Time to Change’.

d) Explore how we can 
promote employment 
opportunities within the 
Council to people from 
diverse background. 

Report to Portfolio 
Lead quarterly.

Provide mental 
health awareness 
training for 
managers and 
staff.

Sign up to the 
pledge and 
develop an action 
plan in 2017.

Monitoring 
information 
concerning 
recruitment 
complied and 
reviewed quarterly. 

Contact Details

Helen Coleman
Health and Community Team
Eastleigh Borough Council,  
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street,
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

Helen Coleman: 023 8068 8017
helen.coleman@eastleigh.gov.uk

26



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: August 2020 to April 2021 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

17 September 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
 

27

A
genda Item

 10



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Home Choice Allocations Policy  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020   
 

Cabinet are asked to 
approve the following 
amendments to the policy: 
 

 Increase the qualification 
criteria threshold for 
applicants’ joint gross 
household income from 
£45,000 pa to £60,000 pa 
in order to have parity with 
the other four local 
authorities signed up to 
the Hampshire Home 
Choice agreement. 

 Award high priority 
banding (Band 2) to 
applicants occupying 
homeless temporary 
accommodation stock for 
2 years. 

 Effect amendments 
throughout the policy to 
reflect the legislative 
changes brought about by 
the introduction of the 
Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017. 

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

28



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

22 October 2020 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
Leader of the 
Council 

Yes 

 
10105 Woodhouse Lane Sports 
Facilities Project  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
approve forward funding for 
delivery of the community 
sports pitches and additional 
sports facilities in advance of 
allocated S106 receipts. 

Harry Lee /  
 

Yes 

 
Write Off Irrecoverable Debts  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

To approve the write-off of 
irrecoverable debts. 

Mark Reed /  
 

Yes 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee 
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
comment on and approve 
the Borough Council’s 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan. 

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

29



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

4 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

26 November 2020 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Fees and Charges  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020  All Pre Decision 
Scrutinies 
 

To consider and approve 
Corporate Fees and 
Charges. 

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Financial and 
Performance Monitoring  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan. 

Emma Pearce /  
 

30



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

5 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

10 December 2020 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
 

Yes 

 
Treasury Management Half 
Year Report  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee 
 

To consider and approve the 
Treasury Management Half 
Year report. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Projects (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

10 January 2021 
 

31



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

6 

Yes 

 
2021 - 2022 Borough Council 
Budget  
 

Cabinet   11 Jan 2021  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider and recommend 
the 2021 – 2022 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval. 

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Capital and Treasury Strategy  
 

Cabinet   11 Jan 2021   
 

To consider and approve the 
Capital and Treasury 
Strategy. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Infrastructure 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   11 Jan 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet      
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager 
Publication Date: 06 October 2020 
 

32



Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 20/21 

Item for Consideration Focus for Scrutiny Officer 

 

JULY 2020 

Corporate Action Plan 19/20 
Review 

 DB 

Corporate Action Plan Pre-decision scrutiny DB 

Quarterly Performance Data 
Q3,4 

Commentary on covid19 plus additional indicators to help interpret 
COVID19 impact on services 

 

Tree Nursery Pre-decision scrutiny, congruence with Climate Action Plan Paul Naylor 

New Ways with Waste 
Project (Waste &  Recycling) 

Project Scope, Focus, Priorities Gale Smith 

Waste Policy Revisions Pre-decision scrutiny of some changes to the waste policy Gale Smith / 
Paul Naylor 

SEPT 2020 

COVID-19 Recovery Plans  NW 

Constitution Review Discussion and update  

Trees SPD Pre-decision  

Draft Policy Review 
Schedule 

To inform work plan DB 

OCT 2020 

33

A
genda Item

 11



Pollution Strategy  Neil Scott 

COVID19 Recovery Scoping and policy outline NW 

Report & Reccs from Social 
Policy and Health & 
Wellbeing Group  

Task and Finish Group report and recommendations  

NOV 2020 

   

   

   

DEC 2020 

Public Transport Operators & 
Public Transport Strategy 

Scrutiny of PTOs, plus introduction to process for public transport 
strategy review 

Cali Sparks 

Climate Change Action Plan Regular 6-monthly scrutiny of progress and changes to CCAP Jason Light 

   

JAN 2021 

Planning Enforcement   

   

   

FEB 2021 

34



Community Safety 
Partnership Review 

 Melvin Hartley 

T.B.D. 

M27 Smart Motorway Invitation issued to Highways England  

Walking & Cycling Strategy Strategy for Feedback; ideally before it’s a “pre-decision” item Cali Sparkes 

Sport & Active Lifestyle 
Strategy (likely delayed by 
COVID?) 

  

Topic: Supporting our Parish 
Councils ** 

COVID-19; need permission to publish from PCs?  

Topic: Economic 
Development and Local High 
Streets ** 

COVID-19 Response; recovery agenda.  

OCTOBER? 

 

Topic: Encouraging 
Sustainable Prosperity 

Mash-up of Economy and Environment  

Topic: Future Population 
Growth and Service Delivery 

  

Digital Inclusion 
Lockdown = less comms via 
non-digital inc parish 
councils, volunteer groups; 
loneliness 

  

 

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	8 Pollution Strategy Development
	9 Equality Strategy Renewal
	Equality Action Plan App A

	10 Cabinet Forward Plan
	11 Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme

